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The Tvistorn of
St. Leon’s Apostolic
A rmenian Church

@HE Armenian community of Paterson had its beginning in 1880, In those
early years, most of the immigrants came from Dekranagerd to establish
themselves in Paterson. Families coming to Paterson during this time in-
cluded the Chankalians, Toprahanians, Hamalians, and the Boghos Ajam-
ians. Also present were Dicran Beshgeturian, Michael Tamazian and George
Takakjian. Most of the men were textile workers.

Many Armenians immigrated to this country after the Armenian mas-
sacre in Turkey in 1896. During this period the Armenian population in the
Paterson area increased to 200, and within a few years reached 500,

The first Armenian Church service was held in the local Episcopal
Church in 1898. Divine Liturgy (Badarak) was performed by Bishop Hov-
sep Sarajian, who was the first primate of the Armenian Diocese of America.

For the most part, however, the Armenian community attended service
at the Holy Cross Armenian Church in Union City. Until 1930, the people
of Paterson were satisfied having visiting pastors who came occasionally
to celebrate Divine Liturgy, perform baptisms, weddings and funerals. These
services were performed with the help of local deacons and acolytes. In
those years, members of the Parish Council were Misak Dishian, Nazareth
Sahatjian, Nemzour Sahatjian, Setrak Ajamian, Mardiros Telalian, Yeg-
heshe Churchian, Hovhannes Dishian, Haig Dishian, Paul Jerrahian, Di-
cran Abajian, Tookman Bakalian, Garabed Der Boghosian, Hannah Shahin-
ian, Alexander H. Phillian, Jacob Nakashian, Hovsep Pusheejian, Richard
Dishian, Mihran Noorigian and Mary Soghomonian.

But the Armenian community in Paterson felt the necessity of having
its own church and pastor. In 1929, the Parish Council under the leader-
ship of the late Archbishop Mampre Calfayan decided to buy land for future
use as a church site. Mampre (then) Vartabed Calfayan, who was serving
as a visiting pastor in the late 1920’s, made plans for purchase of a land
site, but because of the depression, the project had to be abandoned.

In 1932 at a special meeting presided over by Primate Archbishop Leon
Tourian, a fund-raising committee was formed. Its purpose was to purchase
the Episcopal Church called St. Luke, 135 Bloomfield Avenue, Paterson.
Funds for the down payment were quickly raised and purchase of the Church
secured through the offices of Tourian Archbishop and the Bishop of the
Episcopal Church. Samuel-Hekemian, a real estate man, prepared the ne-

cessary papers for the purchase of the church. The fund-raising committee
members were Harry Sohigian, Mugurdich Akellian, Dzovinar Nalbandian,
Haig Dishian, Mihran Noorigian, Setrak Ajamian, Vartouhi Marootian, and
Vartouhi Bakalian. Also, Hannah Shahinian, Manoosh Soghomonian, Paul
Dishian, Sahag Avedisian, Alex Vartanesian, and Alex Phillian.

The church was bought for $6,000 and more than $10,000 was spent
during the following years for renovations and repairs. Although in the
midst of depression, generous donations by faithful church members and
by the sponsors of the church (Dr. H. Beshlian, Harry Sohigian, Misak
Tfank, Charles and Elsie Holopikian, and the Kurkjian and Dishian Bro-
thers) were made, and it was possible to pay the entire mortgage within
two years.

Parish Council members also sacrificed their time and effort to or-
ganize the parish and have the church in a secure financial basis. The
members of the first Parish Council in 1932 were Setrak Ajamian, Sesak
Nalbandian (Khoren Kahana Mamigonian), Alex Phillian, Alex Vartanesian,
Mihran Noorigan, Tookman Bakalian, Hagop Kafafian, Manoosh Soghomonian,
and Hannah Shahinian,

The pastors of the Paterson church have been: Rev. Fr. Hovhannes
Kavookjian, 1936-1938; Archbishop Mampre Calfayan, 1939-1941; Rev. Fr.
Vahan Jelalian, 1941-1947; Patriarch Shnork Kaloustian, 1948-1951; Rev.
Fr. Arten Ashjian, 1951-1953; Archbishop Mampre Calfayan, 1954-1954;
Rev. Fr. Vartan Assadourian, 1955-1957; and Rev. Fr. Carnig Hallajian,
1958-Present.

All pastors of the Paterson church have been devoted persons and
have worked for the progress of the church. They have given spiritual gui-
dance and leadership to the Armenian people in the Paterson area. Arch-
bishop Mampre Calfayan, during his first pastorate in 1939-1941, initiated
the task of restoring sections of the church. He was greatly aided by Sahag
Avedisian, Armenak Mardirossian, Harry Sohigian and John and Karnig
Nakashian. Archbishop Mampre Calfayan was able to bring into reality the
general repair of the hall and alterations made in the church proper.

Archbishop Kareken Hovsepian, primate of the Armenian Diocese of
America, consecrated the church on October 5, 1941, and named it St. Leon’s.
The clergy participating during the consecration were Archbishop Mampre
Calfayan, Bishop Hovsep Garabedian and Bishop Terenig Poladian.

By the 1950’s, it was becoming apparent that the parish was becoming
too large for the church. It was generally agreed that plans be made for a
new church building. Therefore, in February 1954, a testimonial dinner was
held for the late Archbishop Mampre Calfayan. The funds raised at that
time were used to spearhead the drive for a new church building.

Then, in 1968, through the effort of the following Parish Council mem-
bers: John Nakashian, Chairman; Jack Chekemian, Bared Dabaghian, An-



drew Dabbakian, Sarkis Jamgochian, Albert Mardirossian, Zaven Marootian,
Leo Noorigian, Charles Pinajian, Andrew Purpuse, and Andrew Tilbian,
and with the help of the late Mr. Haroutune Nakashian and Archbishop Mam-
pre Calfayan (then primate of the North American Diocese), three acres of
land were purchased on Saddle River Road in Fair Lawn as a site for the
new church. This purchase was made possible by the use of the proceeds
of the Calfayan Testimonial Dinner, and the sale of the old Parish House
plus funds from the various church committees and members.

The property contained two homes, one of which was converted into
the parish house. The cost of the property, $33,500, was paid in a few
years, as was the cost of an additional piece of property purchased on Tay-
lor Road in Fair Lawn.

The property on Taylor Road was purchased for $4,500 and was bought
as a possible site for the parish house in the event that the parish house
would have to be moved to make room for the construction of the new church.
Several parishioners used their own funds to purchase this property for the
church, knowing that it would be several years before they could be reim-
bursed.

Many plans were considered for the new church, with the realization
that any plan finally selected would have to be within the financial means
of the parishioners.

In January of 1963, the Parish Assembly created an executive building
committee and authorized it to spend approximately $165,000 to build a
new church. In January of 1965, the Parish Assembly increased this figure
by another $15,000.

Members elected to the Executive Building Committee were: E. George
Dabagian, General Chairman; John Nakashian and Andrew S. Tilbian, As-
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sociate General Chairmen; Anthony Purpuse, Fund Raising; Andrew Dab-
bakian, Building Construction Chairman; Zaven Marootian, Memorial Gifts;
Edward Torosian, Finance; James Boyajian, Public Relations; and Miss
Bette Noorigian, Executive Secretary.

Others subsequently named to serve on the committee were Paul Ha-
chigian, Co-Chairman of the Building Construction Committee, John Jerra-
hian, Co-Chairman of the Fund-Raising Committee and George Bedrosian,
Co-Chairman of the Memorial Gifts Committee.

The building plans of the church were submitted by Neil Greydanus,
Architect from Hawthorne, and with a few modifications, the church today
conforms to these plans.

On Sunday morning, September 22, 1963, Ground Blessing ceremonies
were held on the property and that afternoon a fund raising Kick-Off dinner
was held in the Chalet in Rochelle Park. Pledges and donations of approx-
imately $80,000 were made during the day.

In May of 1964, bids for the new church were received; all, however,
were rejected as being too high. The Co-Chairmen of the Building Con-
struction Committee then worked with the lowest bidders to reduce the cost
of the church, and on January 10, 1965, the Executive Building Committee
awarded a contract for $161,000 to Minnema Builders of Fair Lawn. At the
same time, mortgaging arrangements were made with the National Community
Bank of Fair Lawn for the borrowing of $135,000 at five per cent interest,
with payments to run 20 years.

Co-signers for the mortgage are John Azarian, E. George Dabagian,
Paul Hachigian, Peter Jesraly, Zaven Marootian, Andrew Tilbian, Charles
Pinajian, and Anthony Purpuse.

Another important matter was also resolved at this time.

Because of the limited frontage of the church property on Saddle River
Road, and because of the close location of the parish house to this fron-
tage, there had been much discussion as to the site of the church. The par-
ish, for a number of years, had attempted to purchase an adjacent piece of
property as a site for the church, and in January of 1965, our parish was
able to make the purchase for $22,500. This is the property on which the
church is now located.

Construction of the church began in March 1965, and on April 10th the
Blessing of the Foundation Stones was held. Officiating was Primate Arch-
bishop Sion Manoogian, our pastor Der Carnig Hallajian, and visiting clergy
from the Metropolitan Area.

Serving as Godfathers for the Blessing of the Foundation Stones were:
Michael Azarian, Levon Bedrosian, Richard Dabagian, Paul Hachigian,
Peter Gamgochian, Donald Keil (in memory of his grandfather, Hovsep Dab-



bakian), John H. Nakashian, Mihran Noorigian, Richard Noorigian, Arthur
Piranian, Edward Tfank (for his father, Misak Tfank), Andrew Tilbian,
Samuel Tungrian, Hagop Vezirian, Gregory Voskian and Dr. Arshag Yak-
oubian (for his mother, Mrs. Yeranig Yakoubian).

The many years of work were brought to a climax in the Consecration
Ceremonies of September 18 and 19, 1965. The ceremonies began on Sat-
urday evening and resumed on Sunday morning, at which time the annointing
of the alter and pillars of the church took place. The Godfathers were:
John Harry Nakashian, Main Godfather; James Boyajian, E. George Daba-
gian, Paul Hachigian, David Kalamian, Richard Karamian, George Maroo-
tian, Aram Mazoujian, John Nakashian, Mihran Noorigian, Charles Pina-
jian, Harry Sohigian, Martin Tarzian, Andrew 8. Tilbian and Leon Yazma-
jian.

Officiating was Primate Archbishop Sion Manoogian with the assistance
of the following clergy: Hyre Yeghishe Semonian, Hyre Vatche Hovsepian,
Der Vartan Megherian, Der Arnak Kasparian, Der Mampre Kouzouian, and
our Pastor, Der Carnig Hallajian.

Participating on Saturday and on Sunday under the direction of Khos-
rof Hamamjian was the Choirs of the Holy Cross, Union City, as well as
St. Mary’s, Irvington, and St. Thomas’s, Tenafly, in conjunction with our
own choir. The ceremonies were witnessed by our own faithful members
and friends from neighboring parishes.

On Sunday evening was the Celebration Banquet at the Chalet in Ro-
chelle Park. This was attended by more than 500 parishioners and friends
of St. Leon’s. It must be noted that the generosity of these people on this
occasion resulted in donations exceeding $20,000. The 1965 Parish Coun-
cil who had worked with the Building Committee to make this historic event
a success were as follows: Paul Hachigian, Chairman; John Azarian, James
Boyajian, E. G. Dabagian, John Jerrahian, Aram Mazoujian, James Noori-
gian, Charles Pinajian, and John Voskian.

St. Leon’s Armenian Church has been the only spiritual center for the
past 30 years for Armenians in this area. The church has given spiritual
and intellectual inspiration to her parishioners and has enabled them to
worship their God and maintain their national and cultural heritage.

It is the hope that the young generation, with faith and love, will con-
tinue the task which their fathers began. The Armenian community trusts
they will be able to strengthen themselves through St. Leon’s Church and
that they will raise their children in the faith of the Armenian Apostolic

Church.
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wnweowntl, UnwdUnpn dwjpp ppluywoniws ppfwih bijb-
nbguliuwy Swypbpnyd bu fUpwlwypbpny fuwowpbg Uulhelw-
pupbpae opSune@heups  Wypwlwypbpy thy, Ubpuwylp U-
qupbwy, LbunYy Nbupavbwy, Phsppn  Swywpbwl, &np huw
shlibwy, dpfppp dwdllnybwy, Swipiwm Rfp,- php Jb& Sopp
8ndubf Swyunbuwupv apybe b jhownwl-, Zwb Ywqw)buwld,
Uh{put Unuphlbuwy, Mhspon Ynephlbuwy, Upfdpp @b puwibuwl
tonuppn RhedtYp,-np 4p Ybpjwywgulp hp Swypp-, Buw-
Ynp Lbqhpbuwly, wpbynph Nulbwl b Sopfe. Uppwl Guwgnuy
bwl,- ap fp Ubphuwyuwglp Jwypp Gpwbaclh bwgneybul,-
tunpgne Phpybwy be Uwlacl) Ppulppbuwi:

Ubyuwbdpbp 19p Vowlwhnewd Lp apylo @newlwy o6-
ot ThuntPbhwy 3wyl vwpncdpp, g%
dncfpep Thpnewduwl §wipwanlh @
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goebbwy, Awb Uqupbwy, Atjdv Mo jwbbwy, Quppq dhul-
Sbwy, Enpf Sumwnbwby, Zwb Nulbwy, 3t fv Unephlybud,
be dwb Btpwlbuwi:
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Goncufipt UpRhP U. Pwy, Uncwpph Us Uovuncwdwdh® be
PEtutbwyh Us Pafdwe bhbobghubpnt qupwg puwubpned n
pnp Shp bhbabguny nupwg nwopt S$bu Jhuwnmbg, TMaupny
bulwl8bwUp nblwjwpneftbwt bt Lavuh Swywqgbwbh Unew-—
quénefbwt Ybppbe, wltl pU; Juwowpbght qbpbgloptuslp
nwabe, wiSwlwp Spwljwivbp be ppfwlwy Swy Swiwnwgbu]
Ubp bhwé bhU Juwybpbpoe be Jlugbpor Swlwp yownluwlwd
wju 6§ pbygp: 080wb Lupwlwypbp bouwd bhu, gnpphlpl
Buwv Vwowrbwi-Uiwg UYiguwlwyp, 8L ydfv No ywbbuwdy, dnph
Suyuwnbuwl,dn; Mwshlbuwy, Twehf Qw[waw%, hsppn  Ruw-
pulbub, Upwl UVwgnefbuwl, dnpf Vwpnefbwl, Awl Lwguw)-
bwy, UhlpawV vacphlybuwb, Quwprq ®pUtbbwy, Zlpph Unqly
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FTwbbuwls
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{ngbung be pluguwluwl Bbpousned, npybuqf winbyp fuwpb-
Yuwly wywonby fabug Swypbpar®y Uuwmoiwdp be wqwlbv nt
ywlyuwyby ppbuy woqu b b SowhnePuwght wpdlpUbpps
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b pp bntﬂpntwb by Jbp Spwlwiuvbpne by pwpbluwlUbpne
Ynqdt: Ruyg vwlwehY acUpyp fupg fp Uldopbppubp n—-
png guilfp Lp wbutlp wyu LPV Jpwy wigpbpliny:

whbglp &bp pYupac@heup pnevny  fuwowpbp b Sw-
nnpnby Bw%&%w@ngwpg Uunbbuy butbpalt Queltt Uwpnefd-
bwy b dngf Vbwpnubul, jwl dnqupuwpdneftbuwly  wiquwl-
Ubpnoue



Cost of Completed Chureh

CHURCH CONSTRUCTION

General Construction Contract .. ... oo v v v v v v e ... $161,000.00
Construction Change Orders and Options .. ....... s 14,828.00
Architects Fee .. ... ¢ttt ittt nontanaonaas - 10,473.00
Legal Fee «oowssnsommonns S D o o N AN 1,563.00

Miscellaneous Items, such as Driveway, Ceiling
for Hall, Kitchen, etes s v v svwusns suvwwams o w w e 16,522.00
$204,386.00

CHURCH FURNISHINGS
Pews, Altar, Chandeliers, Stain Glass, Side Altar,
Other; Approximately ..... v, R R R DR ... $ 45,000.00

Church property .. ....... P R R I R $ 56,000.00
DEBTS AS OF JULY 31, 1987
Mortgage Due National Community Bank ... ........ ... $090,237.00

A

MEMORIALS
A number of memorials are still being offered to our parishioners. Please
study the list below and order the memorial of your choice through Zaven
Marootian, George Bedrosian or by contacting any member of the Parish
Council.

NUMBER MEMORIALS
AVAILABLE REMAINING COST
1 Baptismal Font . ... ........... .. $3,500.
4 Chandeliers « = o ¢ v v 5 0 5 55 55 5 0 8 5 s 5 250. ea.
12 Pews...... I IO P 400. ea.
(Half Pew - $200., Quarter Pew - $100.).
12 Regular Candlesticks . . ... ..... . % N 30. ea.
i Bishop’s Staff . . ... .. .... o s el 400,
2 Side Entrance Doors . .. ... . v v v o 250, ea.
10 Sunday School Classrooms ....... " 500. ea.
1 PIano s o s s 5 5 sis % 5 5 5 65 % & o 8% 5 5 1,000.

Stage Draperies in Church hall . . ... .. 350.

Consecratin - 1965




